
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday 18th September 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth - (Room 108B), Training and 

Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 9

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 26th July 2017. 

6.  INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 1 REPORT 2017/18 10 - 25

The Committee will be requested to consider the Internal Audit Quarter 
1 2017/18 report. 

7.  INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 26 - 50

The Committee will be asked to consider and approve the Internal 

Public Document Pack



Audit Charter. 

8.  RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT – QUARTER 1 2017/18 51 - 61

The Committee will be requested to consider the Risk Management 
Quarter 1 2017/18 report.

 

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Councillor Andy Bell Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Irene Davidson Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Peter Malcolm Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Aasim Rashid Ann Taylor

Andrew Underdown

For more information about this meeting, please contact:

Alison James
Governance and Committee Services
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924711

mailto:alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk


AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 26th July 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Liam O'Rourke (Chair); Councillors Butterworth, 
Davidson, James Gartside, Heakin and Malcolm. A Underdown (Advisory 
Member). 

OFFICERS: D Wilcock (Interim Director of Resources), I Corbridge, V 
Bradshaw, S Smith, J Murphy, K Mackenzie, M Nixon and S Shahid 
(Resources Directorate), D Bowler, J Rooney and S Moseley 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  J Bellard, D Watson and G Mills (Grant Thornton). 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Bell, Joinson, Rashid and Taylor. 

VARIATION OF ORDER OF BUSINESS
1 In accordance with the Council Procedure Rule 2.2, the Chair indicated 
that agenda item 16 – The Work Programme would be considered before 
agenda item 6 and prior to all other business contained within the agenda 
thereafter.  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
3 DECISION:  The minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee 
held on 13th March 2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by 
the Chair. 

WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND TASK AND FINISH GROUPS
4 Members of the Committee considered the Audit and Governance 
Committee’s Work Programme for 2017/2018. 

In considering the Work Programme a Member requested that an Annual 
Report on the complaints received under the Code of Conduct for Elected 
Members be included. 

Members discussed the possibility of appointing 3 Study Groups for Section 
106 Planning agreements, Highways and Governance related matters. 

DECISION:  (1) The Audit and Governance Work Programme 2017/2018 
be noted. 
(2) The Interim Director of Resources be requested to include an Annual 
Report regarding the complaints received under the Code of Conduct for 
Elected Members onto future Work Programmes. 
(3) The Clerk be requested to arrange a meeting to progress the Study 
Group proposals as discussed. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



ICT RESILIENCE PRESENTATION
5 The Committee received a presentation from The Management 
Information Systems Portfolio Manager regarding ICT’s response to the Cyber 
Security Audit which took place on 4th July 2017.

The Committee were advised of: 

 The reasons for the audit;
 Good practice;
 Areas of improvement;
 High priority issues, risk and management action;
 Medium priority issues, risk and management action;
 Low priority issues, risk and management action. 

In considering the presentation clarification was sought regarding who the 
designated person(s) was within the authority to approve access to systems 
for a Councillor and what policies were in place to determine the level of 
access to which systems could be authorised. 

DECISION:  (1) The presentation be noted. 
(2) The Interim Director of Resources be requested to forward a 
response to the questions raised.

RISK BASED VERIFICATION POLICY
6 The Committee considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer that 
presented the ‘Risk Based Verification’ (RBV) Policy for Housing Benefit and 
Local Council Tax Support Claims for consideration by this Committee.  
Members were advised that the policy had been approved by Cabinet on 3rd 
August 2015. The purpose of the RBV policy was to specify how Revenues 
and Benefits would operate an RBV approach to handling claims and to detail 
the controls and processes that needed to be followed to maximise its 
effectiveness.

The Committee were advised that following the publication of Department for 
Work and Pensions Circular HB/CTB S11/2011, local authorities were able to 
implement a ‘risk-based’ approach to verifying claims. The main benefits 
associated with this approach were two-fold: for low-risk cases it would be 
possible to ‘fast track’ applications, which could then deliver service 
improvements to the customer along with cost efficiencies for the service; and 
for high-risk cases it would be possible to more accurately detect fraud and 
error at the time claims entered the system. The circular extended the RBV 
approach on a voluntary basis to all local authorities with effect from April 
2012.

 RBV was a method of applying different levels of verification checks to benefit 
claims according to the predicted risk associated with those claims. Councils 
adopting RBV are would still be required to comply with relevant legislation 
relating to the production of supporting National Insurance documentation (i.e. 

Page 4



to provide evidence of identity for all cases), including those identified as low 
risk; whilst making use of greater intelligence to target more extensive 
verification activity on those claims predicted to be at greater risk of fraud and 
error.

DECISION:  (1) The Committee noted the Risk Based Verification (RBV) 
Policy for the processing of Housing Benefit and Local Council Tax 
Support Claims; 
(2) The Committee agreed that further update reports to Audit and 
Governance Committee were not required and the Risk Based 
Verification Policy be amended accordingly and that a report to Audit 
and Governance Committee would only be submitted if specific issues 
were to arise in the application of the Policy in the future. 

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 4 REPORT 2016/17
7 The Head of internal Audit reported to the Committee summarising the 
work of the Internal Audit Team during the fourth quarter period of 2016/17. 
This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the fourth quarter of 2016/17 on all 
Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by 
the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or adequate assurance 
over the effectiveness of risk management in all but one audit. The exception 
was a limited audit assurance relating to a school which was primarily due to 
weaknesses in financial management specifically in relation to the control over 
dinner money. In this regard we can confirm that financial management and 
control over dinner money has now significantly improved following additional 
support provided to the school.

Internal Audit also highlighted issues relating to the management of a site 
demolition contract whereby Contract Procedure Rules were not adhered to 
and significant costs were incurred which were well in excess of budget or 
expectation.  Discussions focused on procurement issues associated with this 
contract and Internal Audit confirmed a follow up audit would be completed to 
confirm that agreed actions were completed promptly. Members also 
requested that STAR attend a future meeting to provide an update on 
developments within the area of procurement. 

DECISION: (1) The report be noted and
(2) The Head of Internal Audit be requested to ensure that a follow up 
review relating to the contract management audit as detailed in 7.3 of the 
submitted report be completed and included in a future update to the 
Committee. 
(3) STAR Procurement be invited to deliver a presentation at a future 
meeting of the Committee and The Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for 
Corporate & Resources and Assistant Director (Place) also be invited.  

Page 5



INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
8 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit which 
summarised the work of Internal Audit during 2016/17 and presented the 
Head of Internal Audit’s opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s overall 
control environment, governance and risk management for 2016/17.

Members were advised that 96% of the planned audit work that was 
completed during 2016/17, audit assurance opinions issued on the adequacy 
of the internal controls were recorded as ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ in 93.1% 
of cases. Four audits were awarded ‘limited’ assurance opinions but none of 
these were considered to be significant in the wider context of the overall 
system of internal control and did not relate to the programme of material 
system audit reviews.

The Head of Internal Audit concluded that the Council’s overall control 
framework remained adequate and had generally been complied with.

DECISION: The findings, conclusions and the overall opinion expressed 
by the Head of Internal Audit be noted. 

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL FRAUD REPORT 2016/17
9 The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of 
Resources which provided a summary for those charged with responsibility for 
governance on the outcome of proactive and reactive anti-fraud and 
investigation work during 2016/17, with the main focus being work delivered 
by Internal Audit, which now also included the Council’s Counter Fraud Team. 
It also outlined some of the areas of emerging fraud risk and the Council’s 
strategic and operational arrangements for managing these risks. 

Members were updated in relation to the key issues arising and outcomes 
achieved during the year. 

The Members proposed a vote of thanks to the Counter Fraud Team for the 
work undertaken and savings achieved during 2016/17.

DECISION:  The report be noted.

RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
10 The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of 
Resources which summarised the Risk Management work undertaken during 
the 2016/17 year. The report highlighted the significant progress made to 
improve the risk register system and provided updated guidance on methods 
to record and manage Service risks effectively.

Members were informed that the corporate risk register continued to be 
proactively managed by the Leadership Team through regular risk reviews. 
and that the coverage of service risk registers had responded to changes to 
the Council structure, including development of a new register to incorporate 
the management of integrated care services under the Rochdale Locality 
Plan.

Page 6



It was reported that the tender for the whole insurance programme was 
successfully completed at renewal date in June 2017, including the 
communication of a wide range of positive risk information to promote the 
quality of our risk profile.

The 2016 risk management self-assessment process undertaken by all 
Council Services contributed to the governance of risk management. An 
overall compliance score of 76.0% was viewed as positive following 
improvements made to risk monitoring procedures. Action had already been 
taken by all Service teams to address any gaps identified by their individual 
assessments.

DECISION: The report be noted.

EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT (INCLUDING AUDIT AND 
OPINION)
11 The Committee considered a report of the external auditor, Grant 
Thornton UK LLP, that highlighted the key matters arising from their audit of 
Rochdale Borough Council's financial statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2017 in accordance with the requirements of International Standard on 
Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260, and the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

 Under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice Grant Thornton LLP 
were required to report whether, in their opinion, the Council's financial 
statements presented a true and fair view of the financial position and 
expenditure and income for the year and whether the statements have been 
prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting.  

The external auditors were also required to consider other information 
published together with the audited financial statements and whether it is 
consistent with the financial statements and in line with required guidance and 
whether the Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

The external auditor concluded on the basis of our work, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General in November 2016, we are satisfied that in all significant respects the 
Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.
 
In response to queries from Members, The Assistant Director (Finance) 
clarified the situation regarding the “Lender Option Borrower Option” (LOBO) 
loans, emphasising the potential risks to the authority if the Council withdrew 
from the scheme.    

DECISION: The Audit Findings (ISA260) Report for Rochdale Borough 
Council, including the clean opinion in respect of the Value for Money 
conclusion, be noted.

Page 7



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2017
12 The Interim Director of Resources reported that the Council was 
required under Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to 
produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to accompany the Annual 
Statement of Accounts which must be signed by the Leader of the Council, 
Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) and the 
Monitoring Officer.  

The purpose of the AGS process was to provide a continuous review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control and risk management systems 
so as to give assurance on their effectiveness and/or to produce a 
management action plan to address identified weaknesses in either process.  

The Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31st March 2017 was 
submitted for approval, together with the annual audit opinion from the Chief 
Internal Auditor, the external review and inspection reports and an action plan 
to address issues raised and ensures that there is continuous improvement in 
the governance systems.

DECISION: The Annual Governance Statement Year Ended 31st March 
2017 be approved. 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17 (AND LETTER OF 
REPRESENTATION)
13 The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of 
Resources that sought approval of the Council’s audited statement of 
accounts for 2016/17.  On approval, there was a statutory requirement for 
these to be published by 30th September 2017.

The unaudited statement of accounts for 2016/17 had been approved by the 
Chief Finance Officer on 31st May 2017 and made available for public 
inspection up to 10th July 2017, during which time questions and objections 
could be received by the District Auditor.  As a consequence of the audit 
undertaken by the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, a 
small number of changes to the statement of accounts, detailed within the 
submitted report, had been made in agreement with the external auditors. 

The Statement of Accounts 2016/17, together with the management 
representation letter to Grant Thornton UK LLP expressing the Council’s 
opinion that the financial statements gave a true and fair view, were contained 
within the submitted report.  

In considering the report Members sought clarification regarding re-evaluation 
of the Manchester Airport shares and Section 106 monies as well as the £5 
million assets referred to in the report. 

DECISION: The Rochdale Borough Council audited Statement of 
Accounts 2016/17 be approved;
(2) The Management Representation letter be approved. 

Page 8



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
14 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit 
advising that, in order to comply with best professional practice, the Audit and 
Governance Committee should complete an annual report to the Council on 
the work undertaken by the Committee during the previous year.  A draft 
Annual Report for 2016/17, prepared by the Chair in consultation with the 
Head of Internal Audit, was submitted for consideration.

In considering the report, a Member of the Committee requested that future 
Annual Reports include representations of the Standards work undertaken by 
the Committee as discussed earlier in relation to the work programme item.  

DECISION: (1) The Draft Annual Report for 2016/17 by the Audit and 
Governance Committee be approved and submitted to Full Council on 
11 October 2017. 
(2) The Standards work undertaken be reflected in future Annual Reports 
to Council. 

Page 9



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 18th September 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate & Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 1 Report 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the first 
quarter of 2017/18. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. In addition, Internal Audit followed up on 
the Data Protection – Subject Access Requests audit which was given a 
limited assurance rating in December 2016 and confirmed that all agreed 
actions had now been completed. 

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £116,005 in savings during the period 
together with 9 sanctions including 1 prosecution and 8 fines for fraud. 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the first quarter of 2017/18 on all 
Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by the 
UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Risk Based Audit Approach

10.IInternal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal control 
environment, risk management and governance processes for the Council as a whole, 
as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. A risk based approach is taken within 
individual audit reviews, embracing operational and management controls and the 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5

5.1

wider business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk identification and 
exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance opinion on 
how effectively risks are being managed in the area under review. These opinions are 
as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control 
systems in operation are in need of significant improvement.

Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, 
opportunities exist to improve the management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks 
effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with the 
assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a timely basis, 
any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited assurance will be highlighted 
within section 6 of this report. These will be subject to specific discussion and 
challenge by Members with senior officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, 
Internal Audit will perform a formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner 
if the due date for completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the 
Audit and Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and medium 
priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm completion once the 
due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation will be reported to the 
Committee for further consideration. If some of the recommendations have not yet 
been actioned, Internal Audit will request reasons for the delay and confirmation of a 
revised date by which the action should be completed. The current status of the 
implementation of audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is 
highlighted within Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the Members. 
Whilst in some cases implementation has not been achieved by the originally agreed 
dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable explanations to support the delays 
incurred and will continue to monitor progress through to the revised dates proposed 
by management. As such, there are no matters to bring to the attention of Members at 
this stage.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal responses 
to recommendations raised are received within one month of the issue date. Internal 
Audit actively follows up with management via an escalation process to ensure that 
the reports and actions are agreed in a timely manner. At present, there are no draft 
reports where responses are still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter One

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed during quarter 
one which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinion. Key areas for 
improvement are summarised for each audit with a specific focus on any agreed 
actions designated as high priority.

Page 11



6

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7

7.1

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up Audits

Data Protection – Subject Access Requests Follow Up (previously limited 
assurance)
  (Director – Neighbourhoods)

The Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) gives anyone the right to request access to their 
personal information. Individuals may exercise this right by making a written ‘subject 
access request’ (SAR). Upon submitting a written request and paying the appropriate 
fee, the Council must respond to the request within 40 calendar days. This audit 
previously completed in December 2016 focused on providing assurance that the 
Council processes SARs in accordance with the requirements of the DPA with 
reference to the Information Commissioners Office Subject Access Code of Practice.

The audit highlighted many areas of good practice within Council processes including 
the provision of training (both internal and external), and the availability and 
communication of guidance and information to officers. However, as a result of the 
findings from the audit testing completed, it was evident that not all agreed 
procedures were being adhered to and there was a need to strengthen processes and 
controls already in place, specifically through more direct oversight by the Information 
Governance Unit. As a consequence of this Internal Audit were only able to provide 
limited assurance that risks were being mitigated and this was reported to Members 
on 13 March 2017.

As a result of the follow up audit completed in quarter1, the audit opinion has now 
been revised to ‘Adequate’. We confirmed that action had been taken by the 
Information Governance Team to implement all the recommendations and, whilst 
there is still a need for these controls and procedures to fully embed over a period of 
time, we had confidence that this would occur based on our findings. In overall terms 
the Information governance Team has assumed more direct accountability for key 
aspects of the processes which should mitigate the risks of errors or non-compliance 
occurring, thereby ensuring full compliance with legislation. 
 
The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B.

Unplanned work

P11D/ National Insurance Returns
  (Chief Finance Officer – Resources)

At the request of the Chief Finance Officer, Internal Audit has undertaken independent 
checks on the data supporting the P11D / Class 1A NIC’s submission for the tax year 
2016/17 to confirm the accuracy and completeness of the information.  

Following all the testing undertaken, only one minor adjustment was made to the 
returns before they were signed off and submitted. The Payroll function has now 
amended certain procedures to ensure that the error which led to the adjustment will 
not recur in the future.

Page 12



7.2

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Internal Investigation
  (Acting Director – Resources)

On behalf of the Acting Director of Resources, Internal Audit provided independent 
resource to support an internal investigation being managed by Human Resources.

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from April 2017 to 
June 2017 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 233 fraud referrals were received in the first quarter of this financial year, 
representing a decrease of 20 from the same period in 2016/17.  The main sources of 
these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the Partnership 
Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC employees. A significant 
number of these do not progress to formal investigation by the team as they are either 
passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is 
not enough information to progress the matter.

From April to June 2017 the team achieved £116,005 in additional savings and 
overpayments which is ahead of target. This figure derives from successful 
investigations into transactions associated with a number of Service areas including 
Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult Care, as well as 
additional income from fraud financial penalties, administrative penalties and court 
costs. 

79% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in quarter one. 

9 sanctions were achieved in quarter one, comprising 1 prosecution and 8 fines for 
fraud.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that have an 
important role to play in checking data matches that are received from the NFI.  

The Team have now received the 2016/2017 NFI Single Person Discount and Council 
Tax matches and progress is being made in checking all this data. Two pro-active 
exercises in April and May have taken place, from the data that was checked. A 
number of single person discounts have been cancelled, resulting in bills of over 
£18,000 being issued.  

The Team have received the NFI Housing Benefit reports. The recommended 
matches have been checked and samples of the key reports have also been checked.
In addition, the team have now received the Council Tax Reduction reports and are 
currently checking the matches. So far, 8 fraud cases are under investigation. 

Page 13



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

9

9.1

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also provides a 
wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external bodies including 
immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 87 Data Protection Requests 
from April to June 2017, not including the work that is completed in the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each Monday 
to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, skills and powers 
from the different enforcement agencies are used to prevent and detect fraud within 
the Borough. Currently the following cross-agency teams attend the weekly meeting: 
GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s 
Services; Community Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public 
Protection; Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 95 ‘police checks’ on Rochdale BC 
systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and absconders.  In addition, a 
total of 19 fraud referrals have been received as a result of the PET. 

The experienced investigators continue to participate in days of action and proactive 
visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council Tax, Business Rates, 
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.

CIFPA Fraud and Corruption Tracker

Internal Audit co-ordinated a response to this survey which examines the levels of 
fraud and corruption detected across the public sector. It captures the number of 
investigations each organisation has undertaken and the types of fraud we have 
encountered. From all the input provided, CIPFA will produce a national report which 
will be shared with all participating organisations and any salient points will be 
included in future updates to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 30 June 2017 against Internal Audit 
targets for the first quarter, including the actuals for 2017/18. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Q1 

2016/17

Actual 
 Year 

2016/17

Target 
Q1

2017/18

Actual 
Q1

2017/18
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£238 £242 £259 £198

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor (days) 202 194 186 193

Page 14



9.2

9.3

10

10.1

10.2

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Q1 

2016/17

Actual 
 Year 

2016/17

Target 
Q1

2017/18

Actual 
Q1

2017/18
3. Percentage of audit plan completed 
(95% for full year)

24% 96% 22% 20%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports issued 
within 14 days of completion of the audit

100% 100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in 
the top two categories (i.e. very good & 
good)

100% 100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators either achieved or were ahead of target for the year with 
the only exception of the percentage of audit plan completed which is just short of 
target.  

With effect from the beginning of April 2017, the Head of Internal Audit agreed to 
provide some resource to support the Council’s input into the Independent Inquiry into 
Child Sexual Abuse, given the high priority and importance attached to this Inquiry. As 
a consequence, one of the Senior Auditors has been seconded into this project team 
and this arrangement is still ongoing. This time is being drawn from the pool of 
unplanned time included within the Annual Internal Audit Plan and, whilst progress in 
completing the Plan in the first quarter has inevitably fallen slightly behind schedule, it 
is anticipated this can be recovered in future quarters once the secondment ends. 
Furthermore, additional resource has been identified from within the Resources 
Directorate such that a former Senior Auditor will be made available to Internal Audit 
for half his working hours through to the end of March 2018 which will allow much of 
this lost time to be recovered. The Head of Internal Audit will continue to monitor this 
situation and make Members aware of any pressures on resource as the year 
progresses.
Appointment of External Auditors - Update

With regard to the process for the appointment of external auditors prior to 31 
December 2017 for the audit year 2018/19 onwards, Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA) has now confirmed that all the contracts have been 
awarded in various ‘lots’. In overall terms this procurement exercise generates a 
saving on current audit fees of around 18% and with the current audit fee of RBC set 
at £136k, this could be in the region of £24k per annum. All contracts will last for 5 
years with an option to extend for a further 2 year period if the PSAA chooses to do 
so.

PSAA confirmed that 6 different firms have been awarded contracts throughout 
England. On 14 August PSAA informed RBC that they were proposing to appoint 
Mazars LLP to audit the accounts of RBC for the 5 years commencing 2018/19. This 
appointment is subject to a consultation process which is due to end on 22 
September. In this regard the Greater Manchester Association of Metropolitan 

Page 15



Treasurers is proposing to send a collective response to the proposal. If this proposed 
appointment goes ahead, Mazars will replace Grant Thornton as RBC external 
auditors. Further updates will be provided to Members once further announcements 
have been made by PSAA.

Costs and Budget Summary

11. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

12.

Consultation

13. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 16



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter one

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Public Health Public Protection 
– Pest Control

RBC provides pest control services to both residents and businesses 
within the Borough with fees being charged with the exception only of 
treatments associated with domestic mice and rats. The Service mandate 
is to improve public health through the control of pests harmful to human 
health. The audit focused on evaluating the efficiency of service delivery, 
the effectiveness of stock control and the overall management and control 
of income.

Whilst the audit concluded that control systems in operation are generally 
sound, some errors were found in stock records relating to potentially 
harmful/ sensitive materials and equipment and a high priority 
recommendation was made which we note has already been completed. 
We also highlighted opportunities for the efficiency of service delivery to be 
enhanced through more effective use of the Contact Centre service and 
also greater use of technology and both of these areas are now being 
explored by management.

Adequate H – 1,
L – 2

P
age 17



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Annual Payroll 
Returns

The Payroll Section, Resources Directorate undertake the payment of 
salaries not only for administrative staff and teachers, but also for external 
agencies such as Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, Link4Life and other 
smaller organisations. At the end of each financial year, the payments that 
have been made in respect of pensions contributions for administrative 
staff are summarised and details entered onto returns for the ‘Greater 
Manchester Pension Fund - Year End Reconciliation Statement for 
2016/17’.  

Another return completed at the end of the Financial Year 2016/17 is the 
‘Teachers Pension Contributions for financial year 2016/17’.  This return is 
made to the Teachers Pensions Agency and is compiled from the pension 
contributions from all teachers at schools within the Local Authority area 
(excluding academies).  Both these returns are signed by the Section 151 
Officer.

Internal Audit was requested to undertake independent checks on the data 
supporting these returns for the 2016/17 tax year to confirm the integrity of 
the data and the accuracy of the information being reported.  The audit 
work performed did not highlight any anomalies with either return.  All 
checks were completed, found to be correct and the returns were duly 
signed off.

Substantial None 

Resources Council Tax 
Billing

This audit focused on the controls in place relating to discounts and 
exemptions in order to minimise the risk of fraud and error, which could 
lead to a subsequent loss in revenue to the Council. The sample of 
transactions tested covered the range of discounts available.

The audit confirmed that discounts and exemptions were awarded in line 
with guidance and regulation, were calculated and processed correctly and 
were monitored for ongoing validity. As such no recommendations were 
made.

Substantial None    

P
age 18



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Payroll This annual review of the payroll system focused on providing assurance 
that the key risks in relation to lump sum/ redundancy payments and 
payments in relation to sickness absence are being effectively managed. 
The audit covered areas such as approval, segregation of duties, 
supporting documentation and compliance with agreed policies and 
procedures.

The audit concluded that in overall terms there was a sound system of 
control in operation to manage risks effectively. The recommendations 
made were associated with minor issues associated with the recording of 
annual leave and sickness absence which did not accord with standard 
practice and which have now been corrected and the inconsistent storage 
of supporting documentation which has now been addressed. 

Adequate M – 2,
L – 3  

P
age 19



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Cyber Security Cyber Security is the protection of computer systems from the theft or 
damage to the hardware, software or the information on them, as well as 
disruption or misdirection of the services they provide. As the council 
continues to embrace the digital world to support greater efficiencies and 
opportunities for “channel shift” to improve the customer experience, the 
commensurate risk increases so this area assumes even greater 
importance in terms of effective and responsive controls. This audit 
therefore focused on controls supporting the confidentiality, integrity and 
availability of data.

Although at an overall level controls and processes are assessed to be 
adequate, there are still a number of areas which require further 
improvement and these were covered in more detail in the presentation by 
ICT management at the Audit and Governance Committee meeting on 26 
July 2017 confirming the progress being made with the actions agreed. 
The key issues surrounded:

 compliance with the Council’s Patch Management Policy to ensure 
vulnerabilities are addressed promptly;

 the development of a corporate Information Asset Register to 
define all the IT systems currently in place; and

 the development of a formal Cyber Security Policy to underpin 
greater compliance.

Given the significance of this area and the extent to which it supports 
compliance with the Public Services Network requirements, Internal Audit 
will continue to monitor developments in this area and provide updates to 
Members on a periodic basis.

Adequate H – 1,
M – 10,

L – 1 

P
age 20



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Public Services 
Network (PSN)

The PSN is the government’s high-performance network, which helps 
public sector organisations work together, reduce duplication and share 
resources.  Being connected to the PSN is very important for Rochdale 
Council as it is used to securely access and share information with other 
government and public sector organisations such as DWP, NHS and 
Cabinet Office.  Connection to the PSN is subject to an annual external 
compliance regime whereby the Council has to complete a statement to 
the effect that it complies with a certain set of requirements.  Importantly, 
appropriate evidence also has to be supplied in order to substantiate the 
statements made.  

In advance of RBC’s statement being submitted to the Cabinet Office, 
Internal Audit met with relevant staff from ICT Services with responsibility 
for the PSN to establish whether appropriate arrangements were in place 
to ensure that the statement and supporting evidence provided to the 
Cabinet Office were as comprehensive as possible in order to minimise 
the risk of ongoing connection to the PSN not being approved.  Internal 
Audit was satisfied this was the case prior to the Senior Information Risk 
Owner duly signing off the statement on 23rd June 2017 and it being 
submitted to the Cabinet Office that same day. Management has 
confirmed that a number of actions are currently being progressed prior to 
final sign off of the PSN by Cabinet Office.

Substantial None

P
age 21



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Highways 
Contract 

Management

The Highways Management Contract was awarded to one major 
contractor and that contract is managed internally by the Highways team 
within the Neighbourhoods Directorate. The primary aim of this audit was 
to provide independent assurance over the management of this contract 
and the contractor, focusing principally on routine/ reactive work and 
planned work. This should ensure works are in line with contractual 
commitments, quality control measures are appropriate and performance 
and financial monitoring is effective.

Internal Audit provided an ‘adequate’ level of assurance that the key areas 
of risk are being managed effectively. However, this recognises that 
improvements are required to: 

 Demonstrate good governance by improving arrangements for 
managing and reporting risks and escalating significant risks to 
the contract risk register, service risk register and to elected 
Members;

 Demonstrate value for money by improving performance 
management arrangements and reporting performance to 
elected Members, specifically through the use of additional key 
performance indicators (KPIs) which align with strategic and 
operational objectives as well as Service risks;

 Enhance processes to facilitate the contractual requirement to 
pay incentives or damages depending upon the level of 
operational performance achieved;

 Ensure compliance with contractual terms relating to the 
provision of training opportunities and the acceptance of 
subcontractors; and

 Further develop quality control and inspection processes to 
validate KPIs and highlight any issues in performance or 
contractual compliance that may need addressing.

Adequate H – 7,
M – 8

P
age 22



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

This is not to say that officers are not aware of the shortcomings in current 
arrangements, and officers regularly raise contractual and operational 
issues with the contactor and challenge their performance. However the 
above actions will assist in providing greater visibility of any performance 
or contractual issues to both senior management and Members on an 
ongoing basis to ensure value for money is achieved.

Internal Audit will perform a follow up audit in due course to confirm that all 
actions have been addressed in line with agreed timescales.

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter one, the following grant certification was signed off in this way: 
 Assessed and Supported Year in Employment. 

Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Further certifications were provided by Internal Audit in respect of the 
following schemes:
 Parking Charge Notice certification; and
 Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Substantial None

P
age 23



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

2 Primary 
Schools

1 Secondary 
School

These comprised reviews of the schools exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Ashfield Valley Primary
Broadfield Community Primary
Siddal Moor Sports College

No high priority recommendations were made. However a number of 
actions were agreed to improve processes and controls including the 
following:
 The need to ensure Employment Status Indicators(via the new ESS 

form) are completed for all non-schools based staff to ensure tax and 
national insurance is appropriately accounted for;

 Ensuring School improvement Plans are appropriately costed in line 
with proposed activity;

 The need to raise orders at the time a commitment is made with 
suppliers for purchases;

 Ensuring procurement guidelines are complied with by obtaining 
quotations in line with prescribed financial limits;

 Ongoing arrangements for grounds maintenance should be supported 
by a formal contract rather than just monthly orders;

 Ensuring debit cards are used in compliance with agreed policies; and
 Provision of school meals aligns with agreed entitlement as advised by 

the Revenues and Benefits team.

Substantial – 
3

M – 10,
L – 15 

P
age 24



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 31 AUGUST 2017    

Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

IT Disaster Recovery & 
Business Continuity A Neighbourhoods 2 31/07/2016    Follow up to be completed as 

part of the 2017/18 audit

Connected Council 
Programme A Neighbourhoods 3 31/10/2016    Follow up to be completed as 

part of the 2017/18 audit

Better Care Fund A Adult 3 31/10/2016    Follow up in progress
Section 17 Payments S Children's 2 01/05/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18
Public Protection - Pest 
Control A Public Health 1 31/05/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Payroll S Resources 2 30/06/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18
Former Boots Warehouse 
Demolition A Neighbourhoods 7 31/07/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Highways Contract 
Management A Neighbourhoods 15 31/07/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Creditors Transaction 
Testing 2016/17 A Resources 13 31/07/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Refunds - Council Tax and 
Business Rates A Resources 7 31/08/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Primary School L Children's 21 31/10/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/12/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

P
age 25



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 18th September 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate and Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Charter

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS require an Internal Audit Charter to be 
approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in order to define Internal 
Audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility. It establishes Internal Audit’s 
position within the Council and reporting lines, authorises access to records, 
personnel and physical property relevant to the performance of audit work, 
and defines the scope of Internal Audit activity.

The current Internal Audit Charter was approved on 26 September 2016. 
Since then there have been minor revisions to the PSIAS together with 
changes in the governance and management structures within RBC, all of 
which have prompted the need to update the Internal Audit Charter to ensure 
it remains fit for purpose and supports the current operation and remit of RBC 
Internal Audit.

Recommendation

2. The Internal Audit Charter attached as Appendix 1 be approved.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their overall responsibility for governance, to approve the purpose, 
authority and responsibilities of Internal Audit and ensure they align with the 
PSIAS.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

None of the most recent updates to the PSIAS published in March 2017 
required any specific revision to the existing Internal Audit Charter.

In terms of changes to governance and management structures, the changes 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



that have now been reflected in the Internal Audit Charter are:
 The delegation of Section 151 responsibilities from the Director of 

Resources to the Chief Finance Officer;
 The move of the Insurance Team to now fall under the responsibility of 

the Head of Internal Audit; and
 Additional references to independent external sources of assurance, 

summarised within the Assurance Map which forms part of Internal 
Audit’s Annual Report each year, on which Internal Audit may place 
some reliance and influence overall audit coverage when developing 
the Annual Audit Plan and delivering the overall annual audit opinion.

Alternatives Considered

No alternatives considered appropriate with reference to the risks outlined in 
paragraph 6 below.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

In the event that the Internal Audit Charter is not agreed and approved, there 
is the risk of non-compliance with PSIAS as well as Internal Audit not having 
sufficient authority to fulfil its objectives and assist in discharging the 
statutory responsibilities delegated to the Chief Finance Officer.

6.

Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 27



Internal Audit
Audit Charter

Page 28



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Document Control
Document Title: Internal Audit Charter

Summary

Publication Date 18 September 2017

Related Legislation / Applicable Section 
of Legislation Not applicable

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline 
Documents Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2016)

Replaces Internal Audit Charter 2016

Joint Policy (Yes/No) No

Name of Partner(s) if joint Not applicable

Policy Owner (Name/Position) Ian Corbridge – Head of Internal Audit

Policy Author (Name/Position) Ian Corbridge – Head of Internal Audit

Applies to Internal Audit

Review of Strategy

Last Review Date September 2016

Review undertaken by Ian Corbridge

Next Review Date March 2019

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.

Name Title Date of Issue Version Number

Victoria Bradshaw Chief Finance Officer 1.0
Audit and Governance 
Committee 18 September 2017 1.0

Page 29



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 2

CONTENTS

1. Introduction

2. Aims and Objectives

3. Audit Planning

4. Basis of Forming and Evidencing the Audit Opinion

5. Outcomes

6. Management Responsibilities 

7. Internal Audit Team

8. Quality Assurance and Performance Management 

9. Governance and Strategic Framework

10. Risk Management

Appendices

A Information Sources for Internal Audit Plan

B Strategic Core Audit Plans 

C Risk Log

D Internal Audit Structure

Page 30



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 3

1. Introduction

Background
1.1 The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

(PSIAS). The PSIAS comprise a definition of internal auditing, a Code of Ethics for internal 
auditors working in the public sector and the Standards themselves. The PSIAS are mandatory 
for all internal auditors working in the UK public sector. The PSIAS have been effective from 1 
April 2013 and were updated in 2017.

1.2 Internal Audit is defined in the PSIAS as follows:
“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its 
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes”. 

      1.3 The mission of Internal Audit as set out within the PSIAS is “to enhance and protect 
organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight”.

1.4 The PSIAS require an Internal Audit Charter to be approved by the Audit and Governance 
Committee in order to define Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility. It establishes 
Internal Audit’s position within the Council and reporting lines, authorises access to records, 
personnel and physical property relevant to the performance of audit work, and defines the 
scope of Internal Audit activities. 

       
Legislation and guidance

1.5       The Internal Audit function of a local authority arises from two principal pieces of legislation:
 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one 
of the officers (the Chief Finance Officer) has responsibility for the administration of those 
affairs; and

 Section 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 states that “a relevant body must 
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance”.

1.6 RBC Internal Audit therefore discharges the responsibilities above which in RBC are delegated 
to the Chief Finance Officer. Internal Audit also supports senior officers in the following ways:

 The Chief Finance Officer in discharging their responsibilities within the CIPFA 
Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government;

 The Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) in providing high level assurances relating to 
the Council’s governance arrangements; and

 The Monitoring Officer in discharging their responsibilities for maintaining high standards 
of governance, conduct and ethical behaviour.

 
1.7 The practice of Internal Audit is governed by the PSIAS. Internal Audit is also governed by the 

policies, procedures, rules and regulations established within RBC. These include schemes of 
delegation, financial regulations, conditions of service, anti-fraud and corruption strategies, fraud 
prevention procedures and codes of conduct. Similarly, Internal Audit takes due cognisance of 
external bodies, including CIPFA, external audit, local government bodies, together with all 
legislation affecting the service provided by Internal Audit.

Page 31



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 4

Code of Ethics
1.8 The PSIAS contain a Code of Ethics which is mandatory for all internal auditors in the public 

sector and which focuses on four core principles of integrity, objectivity, confidentiality and 
competency. In addition, individual staff within the Internal Audit team are also required to 
adhere to the Codes of Ethics of their professional bodies where appropriate. Internal Audit staff 
are reminded of the need to comply with the Code on an annual basis and also formally sign up 
to the Code.        

Definitions
1.9 The PSIAS require that the Internal Audit Charter defines the terms “Board” and “Senior 

Management” in relation to the work of Internal Audit. For the purposes of Internal Audit work, 
the Board refers to the Audit and Governance Committee which has responsibility for 
overseeing the work of Internal Audit. Senior Management is defined as the Chief Executive, 
Directors and members of the Senior Management Teams.

1.10 The PSIAS also refers to the Chief Audit Executive which in RBC is deemed to be the Head of 
Internal Audit.

1.11 The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for the effective review of all aspects of governance, 
risk and internal control throughout the full range of the Authority’s activities. However, the 
existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management to establish 
systems of internal control to ensure that activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and well-
ordered manner.

Core Principles
1.12 The PSIAS sets out a number of core principles which should be present within all internal audit 

functions for it to be considered as operating effectively. These principles, which are considered 
further throughout this Charter, are as follows:

 Demonstrates integrity;
 Demonstrates competence and due professional care;
 Is objective and free from undue influence (independent);
 Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation;
 Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced;
 Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement;
 Communicates effectively;
 Provides risk-based assurance;
 Is insightful, proactive, and future focused; and
 Promotes organisational improvement.

            Customers
1.13 The customers of Internal Audit effectively comprise all those who expect assurance to be 

provided on the adequacy of the control environment and the processes which support the 
protection of public funds. These customers will include:

 The residents of Rochdale;
 Members;
 Cabinet;
 Chief Executive (as Head of Paid Service);
 Chief Finance Officer;

Page 32



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 5

 Monitoring Officer;
 Senior Information Risk Owner;
 Executive and Service Directors;
 Senior Management and staff;
 Audit and Governance Committee;
 Governance Board;
 Partners;
 External audit;
 School Governing bodies and Headteachers; and
 External grant funding bodies.

2        Aims and Objectives
 

Principal objectives
2.1       The principal objectives of RBC Internal Audit are to:

 Deliver an annual Internal Audit opinion and report that can be used by the Authority to 
inform its Annual Governance Statement;

 Independently review and appraise systems of control throughout the Council;
 Ascertain the extent of compliance with procedures, policies, regulations and legislation;
 Provide reassurance to management that their agreed policies are being carried out 

effectively;
 Facilitate good practice in managing risks and help to embed a culture of appropriate risk 

management;
 Provide proactive advice and input into any significant system or procedural 

developments;
 Recommend improvements in control, performance and productivity in achieving 

corporate objectives;
 Review and challenge the value for money of processes and systems within the Council;
 Add value by identifying improvements in the use of resources;
 Work in partnership with the external auditors;
 Identify fraud as a consequence of its reviews and to deter crime;
 Lead and promote the counter fraud culture within the Authority; 
 Comply with the PSIAS and other relevant guidelines and professional practice; and
 Support corporate aims, objectives and priorities.

2.2 The annual Internal Audit opinion focuses on an evaluation of the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control. This 
is the ‘assurance’ role for Internal Audit. In this regard, reference should also be made to the 
RBC Assurance Map and Framework, presented to the Audit and Governance Committee on 26 
July 2017 within the Internal Audit Annual Report 2016/17. These documents recognise and 
demonstrate the contribution that other sources of assurance have on the overall opinion of the 
control environment, based on the “three lines of defence” model. Internal Audit forms the third 
line of defence alongside other independent providers of assurance. The role of Internal Audit is 
to provide assurance to senior management and Members of the Council that the arrangements 
within the first and second lines of defence are adequate and working effectively to manage the 
risks faced by the Council.
 

2.3 Internal Audit may also provide an independent and objective consultancy service, which is 
advisory in nature and generally performed at the specific request of Service management. The 

Page 33



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 6

aim of the consultancy service is to help line management improve the Council’s risk 
management, governance and internal control. This is the ‘consultancy’ role for Internal Audit 
and contributes towards the overall opinion. Such consultancy work will only be undertaken 
where resources and skills permit without impacting on the annual assurance process, also 
ensuring that there is no conflict of interests arising from the work. In line with the PSIAS, 
approval will be sought from the Audit and Governance Committee before any significant 
unplanned consultancy work is accepted.

            Achieving our objectives
2.4 To meet the above objectives, the RBC Internal Audit function has been established as an 

independent team with a direct management reporting line to the Chief Finance Officer within 
the Finance Service. However direct reporting lines for the Head of Internal Audit are also 
established with the Chief Executive and the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee as 
considered necessary, together with regular direct liaison with the Monitoring Officer. Further 
unrestricted access is also available to Members (including the Leader of the Council), 
Leadership Team, Directors and all officers of the Authority.

 
2.5 The RBC Internal Audit function is led by the Head of Internal Audit who is also designated as 

the RBC Money Laundering Reporting Officer. In line with the requirements of the PSIAS and 
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 2010, the Head of Internal Audit 
is professionally qualified and appropriately experienced. The Risk Manager (who manages the 
Insurance Team) and the Counter Fraud Team Leader (who manages the activities of the 
Counter Fraud Team) also have direct reporting lines into the Head of Internal Audit. Internal 
Audit also has responsibility for managing and co-ordinating RBC involvement in the National 
Fraud Initiative (NFI).   

2.6 Internal Audit work is undertaken in accordance with the Annual Audit Plan which sets out the 
planned programme of audit work for each financial year. This Annual Audit Plan is agreed with 
the Chief Finance Officer prior to approval by the Audit and Governance Committee in April 
each year. Further consideration of the development of this plan is given in Section 3. The work 
of Internal Audit is reported to the Audit and Governance Committee in summary via quarterly 
progress reports.

2.7 Where Internal Audit undertakes assurance or consultancy work on behalf of any other 
organisations, this will be determined in conjunction with the organisation’s Board and also 
subject to the approval by the Audit and Governance Committee and Chief Finance Officer to 
ensure that appropriate resources are available to provide assurance over the Council’s 
activities. A specific terms of reference will be agreed for all such work.

Independence, access and remit
2.8 Internal Audit is independent of all the activities of the Council to ensure it is able to appraise the 

Authority’s governance, risks and internal control systems in the impartial and unbiased manner 
that is essential to the proper conduct of audits.
 

2.9 To ensure this independence and in order to undertake its function effectively, Internal Audit has 
unrestricted access to all the Authority’s records (whether manual or computerised), cash, 
property and may enter RBC property or land to obtain any information or explanations required. 
Such access is granted on demand and need not be subject to prior notice, and also extends to 
partner organisations working on behalf of RBC where this has been agreed within relevant 
contractual arrangements.

Page 34



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 7

2.10 To promote independence and objectivity, Internal Audit neither ‘owns’ a system under audit, or 
is given any operational responsibilities within the line management structure or responsibility 
for any aspect of work subject to audit. In view of the current line management responsibilities of 
the Head of Internal Audit, should any specific internal audits be conducted on risk 
management, insurance or counter fraud activities, the Head of Internal Audit would not be 
directly involved in such audits with responsibility resting directly on an Audit Manager who 
would report directly to the Chief Finance Officer.

2.11 Where Internal Audit staff have a perceived or real conflict of interest in undertaking a piece of 
work, this will be managed through the Internal Audit management process. Staff are required to 
declare any potential conflict of interest when they are assigned a particular review and the work 
will then be reassigned to another auditor. No auditor will undertake assurance work in areas in 
which they had any operational responsibility during the previous 12 months.

2.12 Within the context of the above, the remit of Internal Audit at a corporate level will include the 
following audits areas:

 Corporate governance – Internal Audit will make an independent assessment of the 
assurances being provided from within the governance structures established within 
RBC;

 Risk management – evaluation of processes, effectiveness and alignment with best 
practice;

 Strategic framework – aspects include business strategy, planning and budgetary 
control;

 Ethical framework – including policies and procedures, compliance, code of conduct and 
complaints;

 Information governance – including data protection, freedom of information, records 
management and information security;

 Information systems – including information technology (IT) strategy and physical IT 
controls;

 Counter fraud – including compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (2014), management and co-
ordination of the NFI and the ongoing development of a more pro-active approach to 
fraud detection;

 Fundamental systems – covering all the key financial systems and providing support to 
the external audit work;

 Partnership working – both new and existing arrangements, focusing on governance, 
controls, risk management and performance management;

 Asset management – effective management of properties and property related risks; 
 Major projects and procurement – contracts and procurement processes, commissioning, 

project management, post implementation appraisals, Private Finance Initiative schemes;
 Health and safety – central and service based risks;
 Business continuity planning – emergency planning and large scale emergencies; and
 Grant certifications – certification that expenditure is in accordance with grant conditions 

where this forms part of the grant conditions.
 
3 Audit Planning

 Audit Strategic Plan
3.1 The Authority’s Internal Audit Strategic Plan details all potential audit areas at a corporate level 

and across all Service areas within RBC.  Attached to each audit area is a risk score based on a 

Page 35



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 8

number of risk factors including materiality, third party sensitivity and potential fraud risk. This 
score influences the frequency of audit review and the estimated resource requirements to 
cover each audit area over a five year period. The Audit Strategic Plan is reviewed and 
challenged annually in conjunction with Directors and senior management to ensure that it 
remains up to date and continues to take account of emerging risks and Service developments 
such that the focus of Internal Audit work remains relevant to the Council’s vision and current 
aims, objectives and priorities.

 
Annual Audit Plan

3.2 The Annual Audit Plan setting out the audit work programme for each financial year is 
determined from a number of sources including:

 The Audit Strategic Plan identifying audit areas of highest risk, the date the audit review 
was last undertaken and the frequency thereof;

 The corporate and service based risk registers, aligned with the corporate objectives set 
out in the Authority’s Corporate Plan, to identify areas of high strategic and operational 
risk;

 Discussions with members of the Leadership Team;
 Actions and developments identified in the Annual Governance Statement;
 Directors and Service Management Teams advising on service developments and 

providing opinions on proposed audit coverage and audit scheduling;
 Issues highlighted by the Audit and Governance Committee and Governance Board;
 Changes and developments arising from corporate savings initiatives;
 The external auditor, advising on national developments and to avoid duplication with 

their own plan for the Authority;
 Issues identified from external assessments undertaken on Council Services;
 The Council’s overall Assurance Map which identifies various forms of assurances 

provided by external organisations which influence the coverage required from Internal 
Audit through reliance on these other independent forms of assurance;

 External assurances required by agreed contractual or funding arrangements or 
legislative requirements; and

 Audit resource availability.
This is illustrated further in Appendix A showing all the various factors which are taken account 
of when developing the Annual Audit Plan.

      Other information sources
3.3 Awareness of national issues is maintained through subscription to internet resources such as 

CIPFA’s Technical Information Service. In addition there is liaison with external audit and 
networking with other local authority audit teams specifically within the North West region. 
Networking across the North West is achieved primarily through the Chief Audit Executive 
Group and also various sub-groups such as the Information Systems Audit and Risk Group, the 
Contract Audit Group and the Fraud Group, all of which meet periodically throughout each year 
to discuss topical issues, emerging risks and progress specific initiatives.

 
Ongoing review

3.4 Whilst subject to approval by the Audit and Governance Committee in April of each year, it is 
recognised that the Annual Audit Plan is a flexible document which is subject to ongoing review 
and challenge and can be revised should unforeseen issues arise during the year. With this in 
mind, contingency provision exists within the Annual Audit Plan for unplanned work such as 
special investigations involving suspected fraud and irregularity and the provision of ad hoc 
advice.

Page 36



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 9

4 Basis of Forming and Evidencing the Audit Opinion

 Audit approach
4.1 Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal control environment, 

risk management and governance processes for the Council as a whole. A risk based approach 
is taken with individual audit reviews, embracing operational and management controls and the 
wider business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk identification and exposure 
and the adequacy of systems in place to manage those risks.

Core and assurance work
4.2 The Annual Audit Plan governs each year’s activity and, to enable the work to be planned and 

delivered effectively, audit coverage is prioritised and categorised between “core” work and 
“assurance” work.

4.3 Core work relates to those areas, normally of higher risk, where Internal Audit review or support 
will add greatest value to the organisation. The projects within this category will be given highest 
priority in the event of competing demands for Internal Audit involvement. The key elements of 
the core audit plans are set out in Appendix B.

4.4 Assurance work complements the work from the core plan and ensures an adequate level of 
Internal Audit review each year within each Service. Whilst the individual reviews are initially 
agreed with Directors and Senior Management Teams at the start of each year, it is also 
accepted that should the need arise, audit work may be directed towards other emerging risks 
or investigations as required. Overall levels of input will remain broadly as agreed which means 
that the levels of assurance work are aligned with the initial levels of risk identified. This 
approach enables a wide range of coverage for a formal audit opinion to be formed.

Fraud related work
4.5 Internal Audit does not have any specific responsibility for preventing or detecting fraud or error; 

this is the responsibility of management. Internal Audit’s role is to provide senior management 
and the Audit and Governance Committee with assurance that the management of the 
organisation have themselves established procedures that allow them to prevent or detect fraud 
or error and to respond appropriately should this occur. Alongside this, the Annual Audit Plan 
has resource set aside each year to ensure any irregularities or fraud related issues which may 
arise can be investigated, with outcomes being reported to management and the Audit and 
Governance Committee in a similar manner to all other planned audit work.
 

 4.6        Internal Audit takes a lead role, working in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer, in promoting 
and supporting the zero-tolerance approach to fraud adopted within the Authority. This includes:
 Supporting the promotion of and awareness of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 

(AFACP), including the Whistleblowing Policy;
 Co-ordinating the National Fraud Initiative (NFI);
 Further development of a pro-active approach to fraud detection which both aligns with and 

adds to the NFI;
 Supporting the above approach by further developing the use of data mining software to 

highlight further potential areas of risk;
 Monitoring and reporting on the Authority’s response to various professional and sector led 

guidance and publications on best practice in fraud prevention and detection;  

Page 37



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 10

 Directly supporting the Counter Fraud Team to investigate and prosecute any identified 
fraudulent activity and to ensure an effective exchange of relevant information with various 
enforcement agencies; and

 Ensuring compliance is being achieved with all key policies and there is adequate 
awareness across the Authority. 

Audit reporting 
4.7 At the completion of each audit a report is produced for management with recommendations for 

improvement where considered appropriate; such recommendations are agreed with 
management together with accountability for action and timescales for completion.

 
4.8 For each report issued, the recommendations are categorised as high, medium or low priority. 

Specific guidance on the application of these priorities is set out in the RBC Internal Audit 
Manual. In addition, each report relating to planned audit work contains a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under review, ranging from 
“substantial” (green), “adequate” (amber) to “limited” (red). 

Monitoring
4.9 The status of the Internal Audit Plan is monitored on an ongoing basis through regular meetings 

by the Audit Management Team alongside periodic meetings with both external audit and 
Service Management Teams. This ensures that audit coverage will be sufficient to ensure an 
overall opinion can be given on the control environment. Audit recommendations are followed 
up on an ongoing basis with status reports included in the quarterly Internal Audit reports 
prepared for the Audit and Governance Committee, specifically to highlight any significant 
issues and actions which have not been completed within agreed timescales.

Audit opinion 
4.10 The annual assessment of the Council’s overall internal control environment is based on the 

collective view of all the opinions and outcomes of audit work undertaken during the course of 
each year, including external assurances which feed through into the Council’s overall 
Assurance Map; a full summary is included in the Internal Audit Annual Report presented to the 
Audit and Governance Committee. The annual opinion then forms part of the review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework and is included in the Annual Governance 
Statement.

External audit
4.11 External audit, in the performance of their work and the opinion they form on the Annual 

Statement of Accounts, also have regard to the opinions arising from Internal Audit reviews of 
key financial systems and the assessment of system controls. This relationship is supported 
through regular liaison meetings between Internal Audit and external audit.

5      Outcomes

5.1      The main outcomes from the work of Internal Audit are: 
 The delivery of the Annual Audit Plan, taking into account necessary changes for 

unplanned work or revised priorities in the context of new emerging risks and requests 
for investigations into specific issues;

 The issue of audit reports at the conclusion of each audit;
 The follow up of progress on implementation of agreed audit recommendations;

Page 38



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 11

 The provision of quarterly reports to the Audit and Governance Committee summarising 
the audit and investigatory work completed each quarter and the key issues and 
conclusions derived from that work in terms of the control environment and management 
of risks. Should any sensitive or confidential matters be covered, consideration may be 
given to presenting these to the Audit and Governance Committee as a private agenda 
item to comply with information governance regulations and legislation;

 The provision of an annual report and audit opinion on the effectiveness of governance, 
risk management and the overall control environment presented to the Audit and 
Governance Committee. This audit opinion statement will also be included in the Annual 
Governance Statement which accompanies the Annual Statement of Accounts for the 
Authority;

 The investigation of referrals of cases of suspected financial irregularity, fraud or 
corruption; and

 The provision of ad hoc advice on control and governance issues.

6 Management Responsibilities

6.1 For Internal Audit to be fully effective, it needs the full commitment and cooperation from 
management in the Council. In approving this Audit Charter, the Chief Finance Officer and the 
Audit and Governance Committee are mandating management to cooperate with Internal Audit 
in the delivery of the service by:

 Attending audit planning and scoping meetings and agreeing the terms of reference for 
individual audit assignments on a timely basis;

 Sponsoring each audit assignment at senior management level;
 Providing Internal Audit with full support and cooperation, including complete access to 

all records, data, property and officers relevant to the audit assignment on a timely 
basis;

 Responding to Internal Audit reports and making themselves available for audit closing 
meetings to agree draft audit reports; and

 Implementing audit recommendations within agreed timescales.

6.2 Instances of non-cooperation with reasonable requests will be escalated through the Chief 
Finance Officer and ultimately to the Audit and Governance Committee if necessary.

6.3 Whilst Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Council and the 
Audit and Governance Committee, it is the responsibility of the Council’s management to 
develop and maintain appropriately controlled systems and operations. Internal Audit does not 
remove the responsibility from management to continually review the systems and processes 
for which they are responsible and to provide their own assurances to senior management and 
Members that they are maintaining appropriately controlled systems. 

7 Internal Audit Team

7.1 The size of the Internal Audit team required is evaluated from the Internal Audit Strategic Plan 
and annual audit planning process and is subject to ongoing review and consideration by the 
Head of Internal Audit in liaison with the Audit and Governance Committee to ensure it remains 
adequate to deliver an effective service and an annual opinion. Regular updates to the Audit 
and Governance Committee are provided through the Internal Audit quarterly reports. The 
current level of resources, as set out in Appendix D, is considered sufficient to ensure delivery 

Page 39



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 12

of the Annual Audit Plan and provide the necessary assurance on the effectiveness of the 
systems of internal control.

 
7.2 The Internal Audit section includes a range of qualified and part-qualified staff, along with 

specialists in computer audit and investigative work.  Whilst the Annual Audit Plan sets out the 
number of days allocated to each Service within RBC for each year, the working arrangements 
provide for a flexible approach between clients whereby audit days or expertise can be 
transferred depending upon any specialist or additional work that may be required. All audits are 
performed by staff with qualifications and experience appropriate to the work undertaken and 
Internal Audit’s quality control procedures, forming part of the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme, require some supervisory input into all work by CCAB professionally 
qualified staff.

7.3 Individual members of the Internal Audit team have a personal responsibility to undertake a 
programme of continuing professional development to maintain and develop their competence. 
This will be achieved through professional training, attendance at ad-hoc seminars and in-house 
training courses. Training needs are assessed on an ongoing basis and are formally reviewed 
annually as part of the Council’s Personal Development Review process. 

8 Quality Assurance and Performance Management

8.1      PSIAS require that the Internal Audit function is subject to a Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (QAIP) that must include both internal and external assessments. The 
QAIP for RBC Internal Audit was approved by Audit and Governance Committee on 7 
December 2015. Internal Audit will report the outcomes of quality assessments to the Audit and 
Governance Committee through its regular and annual reports.

  Internal assessments
8.2   All Internal Audit reviews are subject to management quality review to ensure that the work 

meets the standards expected for audit staff. Such management review will include:
 Ensure the work complies with the PSIAS;
 Work is planned and undertaken in accordance with the level of assessed risk; and
 Appropriate testing is undertaken to support the conclusions drawn.

  External assessments
8.3   The PSIAS requires an external assessment of Internal Audit to be carried out every five years 

by a qualified independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. Such 
an external assessment must be focused on appraising and expressing an opinion on Internal 
Audit’s conformance with the PSIAS and include recommendations for improvement where 
appropriate. There is also a specific requirement for Internal Audit to confirm conformance to 
these standards, or report any such non-conformance, to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
Where any such non-conformance impacts upon the overall scope or operation of the internal 
audit activity, this will also be disclosed in the Annual Governance Statement. 

8.4 On an annual basis, conformance to the PSIAS will be confirmed by a self-assessment against 
the PSIAS undertaken by the Head of Internal Audit and signed off by the Chief Finance Officer. 
The results of this will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee within the Annual 
Internal Audit Report.

Page 40



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 13

8.5 With regard to the external assessment, CIPFA guidance indicates that external assessments 
can be in the form of a full external assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external 
validation. Furthermore, an independent assessor or assessment team means not having either a 
real or an apparent conflict of interest and not being part of, or under the control of, the 
organisation to which the internal audit activity belongs. In order to fulfil this requirement, RBC 
have signed up to a Peer Review process developed by the North West Chief Audit Executive 
Group involving numerous local authorities in the north west region. The Peer Review process is 
in the form of a self-assessment with independent validation by senior qualified audit 
professionals from other local authorities. This process was approved by the Director of 
Resources and the Audit and Governance Committee on 26 September 2016.

                Performance Management
     8.6    The performance of the Internal Audit function is measured through the use and monitoring of 

some key performance indicators which are agreed with the Audit and Governance Committee as 
part of the Annual Audit Plan each year and reported to Audit and Governance Committee on a 
quarterly basis.              
    

8.7 Client surveys are requested from audit clients at the end of each audit assignment, as well as 
direct feedback periodically from Directors/ Senior Management Teams. This enables Internal 
Audit to identify and respond to any specific performance issues promptly to ensure efficiency 
and effectiveness is maintained, as well as ensuring the needs and expectations of clients are 
fully considered on an ongoing basis.

 
9     Governance and Strategic Framework

9.1 Each local government body operates through a governance framework which brings together an 
underlying set of legislative requirements, governance principles and management processes. 
The corporate governance framework published by CIPFA in 2016, “Delivering Good Governance 
in Local Government”, defines the principles that should underpin the governance of each local 
government organisation. It provides a structure to help authorities with their own approach to 
governance and contains seven core principles focusing on:

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law;

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;
 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits;
 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes;
 Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it;
 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management; and
 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 

accountability.

9.2 The framework is intended to be followed as best practice for developing and maintaining a 
local code of corporate governance and for discharging responsibility for the proper conduct of 
public business, and this is summarised within the Annual Governance Statement. Time is 
included in the Annual Audit Plan to evaluate the effectiveness of the governance arrangements 
on an annual basis and independently challenge the assurances which underpin the annual 
report.

Page 41



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 14

10      Risk Management
 
10.1    As part of embedding the Corporate Risk Management Strategy across all Services within RBC, 

consideration has been given to the risks associated with this Internal Audit Charter and the key 
elements of the processes underpinning its delivery. These risks, together with the impact, 
mitigating controls and accountability are presented in Appendix C.

Page 42



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Appendix A
Information Sources for Annual Internal Audit Plan                                    

ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT

AUDIT
STRATEGIC 

PLAN

LEADERSHIP 
TEAM

RISK
REGISTERS

AUDIT AND 
GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE

ANNUAL
INTERNAL AUDIT

PLAN

EXTERNAL 
AUDIT

CODE OF 
CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS
AND SMT

AUDIT 
RESOURCE

AVAILABILITYY

EFFICIENCY 
ACTION 
PLANS

EXTERNAL
ASSESSMENTS 

AND 
ASSURANCES

LOCAL AND 
WIDER 

NETWORKINGCHIEF 
FINANCE 
OFFICER

GOVERNANCE 
BOARD

P
age 43



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 2

Appendix B

Strategic Core Audit Plans

Auditable Area Analysis of Auditable Area Comments

Corporate Governance  Governance Arrangements of the Council
 Partner Organisations
 Council Companies

Annual compliance review with RBC Code of Corporate Governance.
Ensuring effective arrangements between Council and external agencies.

Disclosure Statements  Annual Governance Statement (AGS) Independent challenge to AGS.

Review of material 
systems

 Housing Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme, Payroll, 
Civica (including general ledger, debtors and 
creditors), cash control, treasury management, 
Controcc (Adult Care and residential payments 
system)

Review of key system controls supported by transaction testing. 

National Fraud Initiative  Matching of data from a number of systems in 
search of fraudulent claims or payments.

A mandatory project, involving all local authorities and co-ordinated by 
the Cabinet Office.

Partnership Working 
and Joint Working

 Strategic partnering.
 Specific (smaller scale) partnerships.
 Review of management arrangements to ensure 

achievement of clear objectives.

Ensuring effective management, communication, shared objectives and 
monitored outcomes.

P
age 44



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 3

Auditable Area Analysis of Auditable Area Comments

Asset Management Maintenance and management of properties Ensuring the effective management of properties and property related 
risks.

Management of Major 
Projects and contracts

 Individual capital schemes.
 Service Delivery (revenue) projects
 PFI schemes

Compliance reviews, ensuring effective monitoring and accountability 
against specified outcomes.

Risk Management  Corporate and Service Risk Registers
 Policy and procedures

Maintaining and improving the corporate framework
Challenging the extent to which risk management is embedded

Business Continuity 
Planning

 Ensuring a consistent approach to planning for 
local and larger scale incidents.

 Contingency arrangements for information 
technology systems.

Links to emergency planning (Civil Contingencies)

Procurement, contracts 
and commissioning

 Procurement and commissioning process
 Contract management and monitoring 

arrangements
 Stage Payments, final accounts and claims
 Involvement with and support from STAR

Applies to both revenue and capital contracts

Information governance  Overall strategy
 Data Protection
 Freedom of Information
 Records management
 Data quality
 Information security

Review of compliance with standards and legislation.
Review effectiveness of data quality strategy and compliance.

P
age 45



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 4

Auditable Area Analysis of Auditable Area Comments

Information technology  Review of IT Strategy and Management
 Review of Systems and Developments
 Network and cyber security
 Compliance with corporate policies and 

standards.

Review of different aspects each year

Managing the risk of 
fraud and fraud / 
special investigations

 Independent review of suspected fraud or other 
sensitive areas

 Policy reviews
 Pro-active data matching

Includes support for the disciplinary process as required

P
age 46



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 5

                                                                                                                                                                                                    Appendix C        
Risk Log

No. Risk Impact Controls Responsibility
1 The Charter is not 

adopted
Internal Audit may not be able to produce an 
opinion on the overall control environment.

Head of Internal Audit facilitates agreement of the 
Charter by the Chief Finance Officer and approval 
by the Audit and Governance Committee.

Head of Internal Audit

2 The objectives within 
the Charter are not 
adhered to

The Audit Plan does not reflect the objectives 
within the Charter.
Internal Audit may not be able to produce an 
opinion on the overall control environment.
Adequate assurance may not be given to the 
Audit and Governance Committee and other 
customers.

Approval of the Charter by the Audit and 
Governance Committee.
Ongoing monitoring of audit coverage and 
quarterly reporting to Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Head of Internal Audit

3 The core audit plan 
is not completed

Sufficient coverage of the Audit Plan may not be 
achieved to produce an opinion on the overall 
control environment.

Ongoing monitoring of audit coverage and 
quarterly reporting to Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Head of Internal Audit

4 Demand for 
unplanned time 
exceeds 
expectations

Sufficient coverage of the Audit Plan may not be 
achieved to produce an opinion on the overall 
control environment.

Contingency is factored into the Audit Plan based 
on previous experience and current expectations.
Ongoing monitoring of audit coverage.

Head of Internal Audit

5 Significant new risks 
or systems are not 
identified and 
covered by the Audit 
Plan

Internal Audit may not be able to produce an 
opinion on the overall control environment.

Wide consultation process informs the 
development of the Audit Plan.
Ongoing liaison with Leadership Team, Directors 
and Senior Management Teams.
Time contingency built into the Annual Audit Plan.

Head of Internal Audit/ 
Audit Managers

P
age 47



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 6

No. Risk Impact Controls Responsibility
6 Audit resources are 

inadequate.
Internal Audit may not be able to produce an 
opinion on the overall control environment.

Ongoing monitoring of available resources and 
audit coverage.
Periodic challenge of available resources and 
audit coverage.

Head of Internal Audit/ 
Chair of Audit and 
Governance Committee

7 Loss of 
independence

The ability to produce an independent opinion 
on the overall control environment may be 
compromised.

No audit staff have any operational 
responsibilities.
Clear guidance on approach set out in the Audit 
Manual which supports all key aspects of the 
PSIAS.
Head of Internal Audit has a direct reporting line 
to the Audit and Governance Committee 

Head of Internal Audit

8 Professional 
standards (PSIAS) 
are not complied 
with

The standard of audit work is not sufficient to be 
able to give an opinion on the overall control 
environment.

Audit Manual details working practices modelled 
on the PSIAS.
Ongoing in-house and external training.
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
sets out quality control procedures to ensure 
adequate management and supervision of staff.

Head of Internal Audit

P
age 48



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 7

Appendix D
RBC Internal Audit – Structure with effect from June 2017                                           

    

Head of Internal Audit 

 Audit Manager  Audit Manager

Auditor
(Term time 

only)

Senior 
Auditor

Senior 
Auditor

Auditor

Counter 
Fraud 
Team 

Leader

Risk Manager

Senior Insurance 
Officer

P
age 49



Internal Audit

rochdale.gov.uk 1

 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 50



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 18th September 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Corporate and Resources
Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management work during Quarter 1 of 
the 2017/18 year. 

The report provides updates on work currently underway to update and 
improve risk registers across all Council Services and to develop registers for 
integrated care under the Rochdale Locality Plan. The report also provides a 
summary of the feedback provided by Zurich Insurance following their Schools 
Risk Ranking exercise. This review confirmed that Zurich considered the risk 
management quality and arrangements in the schools visited were to a good 
standard, but there were a few areas of improvement and development that 
will help to enhance existing procedures.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Risk Management work of the management of 
risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Risk Management coverage during the 2017/18 year for all Council 
Services.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Corporate Risk Register
The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. Risk issues are discussed by Directors regularly as an 
agenda item in Leadership Team meetings. The Corporate risk register is 
attached as Appendix 1.

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



5.

5.1

5.2

Service Risk Management

Risk Management Group
The Risk Management Group (RMG) is led by the Risk Manager and 
comprises 22 Risk Champions each representing different Council services. 
The RMG is used to communicate new risk information and share best 
practice between different areas of the Authority.

The most recent Risk Management Group meetings were held during June - 
July 2017 to present new risk register guidance to risk champions. The Risk 
Register Guidance paper was agreed by Leadership Team in March 2017. All 
service risk registers are to be reviewed by 8th September 2017 in accordance 
with the guidance provided. The intention is to remove unproductive risk 
activity, and therefore increase the efficiency of risk management work. The 
guidelines also include checks to ensure all key risks are still covered.

Schools Risk Ranking
Risk Consultants from insurers, Zurich Insurance, carried out risk surveys at 
11 Primary, 3 Secondary and 2 Special Educational Needs schools within the 
Authority in May 2017. The exercise provides an independent assessment of 
the quality of risk management. The survey reports have now been received 
and risk ranking scores provided for all assessed schools.

Zurich has commented that overall they consider the risk management quality 
and arrangements in the schools visited to be to a good standard. All schools 
visited were left with a summary of positive features – examples being the 
preparation of formal policies which are subject to regular review, regular fire 
safety risk assessments, good standards of electrical maintenance, and many 
have automatic fire detection or remote intruder alarm signalling in place.

The schools were also advised of ‘areas for improvement/development’ that 
had been identified during the surveys. Solutions to all issues were discussed 
on site. Confirmation will be required from each school that these risk-control 
actions have been completed. Examples of common issues across multiple 
schools are listed below -

1) Security marking of IT equipment (3 schools).
2) Anti-vandal paint to perimeter fencing/gates to stop unauthorised access to 

the grounds (3 schools).
3) No school governor responsible for health and safety at the school, or gaps 

in the support offered by this governor. A governor is to be appointed to 
assist the school management team, specifically by conducting a termly 
walk around the school site to assist in identifying issues (9 schools).

4) No written policy for lone working of staff. This is to be produced, 
communicated to all staff and then reviewed annually (3 schools).

Almost all schools were found to have a range of formal policies in place, 
including suitable Health and Safety policies. There was only one exception 
where the School Manager required guidance from Rochdale’s Safety Team 
to update their policies.

Page 52



5.3

5.4

Risk ranking scores were provided using a Zurich scoring mechanism which 
rated the schools in respect of risk management, health and safety, fire perils, 
security, and visitor control categories. The schools that benefit from either 
sprinkler protection or automatic fire detection attracted higher scores due to 
the weighting of this risk factor. The highest scoring school in the analysis 
scored well for both sprinkler protection and the quality of visitor control 
(including CCTV coverage to the reception area), whilst the lowest scoring 
school had experienced a larger frequency of RIDDOR (Reporting of Injuries, 
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations) reportable incidents.

The data and reports provided by Zurich will be utilised by the Risk Manager 
and the School Organisation and Development team to prioritise risk issues in 
our schools. 

Integrated Care Risk Management
Progress to develop risk management activity under the Rochdale Locality 
Plan programme continued during quarter 1. The programme is aimed at 
addressing health and service integration in part through the pooling of 
budgets for health and social care services. The risks identified will be owned 
jointly by the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning 
Group, the Health Provider Services and the Council. Therefore combined 
governance and monitoring procedures are to be established to address the 
key risks to the operation of all projects.

Managers of the various Locality Plan projects are already including updates 
on identified risks in reports to the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on a 
monthly basis. Typical risks across the different projects are the threats to 
funding and recruitment in these early development stages. Work is currently 
underway for the project leads to identify additional risks associated with 
delivery of their emerging plans. More detailed risk registers are therefore 
anticipated to be in place during the next quarter.

Priorities for the Next Quarter

1) Updates of all Service risk registers to be completed in accordance with the 
recently issued Risk Register guidance paper.

2) Risk Management self-assessment questionnaires to be distributed to all 
Service teams.

3) The development of full risk registers for the various Rochdale Locality 
Plan projects to be completed.

Page 53



6.
Risk Management Results

The table below shows the outcomes from the Risk Management Leadership 
dashboard for Quarter 4 2016/17 and Quarter 1 2017/18. 

Leadership Dashboard –
Risk Management

Result 
 Q4 

2016/17

Result 
 Q1 

2017/18

Target
2017/18

1. Number of Corporate Register Risks 10 10 Statement 
only

2. Number of Red risks on Corporate Register 0 0 0

3. Number of Red risks on Service Registers 0 0 0

4. Number of Risks where risk score has 
increased in last Quarter

0 0 0

Following the completion of the reviews of all Service risk registers there are 
no Red-rated risks to report.

Costs and Budget Summary

7. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council or 
governing bodies will be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk 
Management reports. These risks will be mitigated by completion of the 
actions agreed with management and summarised within this report. 

8.

Consultation

9. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None.

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 54



Rochdale Risk Report 21 August 2017

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk Summary

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Jun 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 17

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 18

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 06 Jul 18

P
age 55



CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 
the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed quarterly, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 18

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2016/17 and 2017/18 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Apr 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 17

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

P
age 56



 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Jun 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 17

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)

P
age 57



Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sheila Downey Sheila Downey Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

30 Sept 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Sept 17

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Sept 17

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Sept 17

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Sept 17

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Sept 17

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Sept 17

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Sept 18

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

30 Jul 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 17

CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

P
age 58



John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7001 Community and Cohesion Strategy communicated and embedded   Mark Dalzell Control - Being 
Developed

23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks    

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Apr 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 18

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Mar 18

 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 18

CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

P
age 59



Sheila Downey Sheila Downey Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Apr 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9003 Quality assurance checks   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9009 Recruitment and retention plan for qualified social workers Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Jan 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Nov 17

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Dec 17

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 18

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 18

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

P
age 60


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Internal Audit Quarter 1 Report 2017/18
	7 Internal Audit Charter
	Append. 1 for Internal Audit Charter

	8 Risk Management Progress Report - Quarter 1 2017/18
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2017/18


